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September 24, 2014
STATE OF MONTANA

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ADDENDUM

RFP NO. 15-3017T
TO BE OPENED: October 10, 2014
TITLE: Mobile Device Management Solution
ADDENDUM NO. 1
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 1
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,

Tia Snyder
Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP # 

	1. 
	General 
	N/A
	Q.
Will the State accept a proposal from a reseller, while the State signs the contracts directly with the solution provider?
A.
Yes, the State will accept a proposal from a reseller, provided that the Offeror understands that the State will make a good faith effort to negotiate a contract  but does not guarantee a contract with a 3rd party.

	2. 
	Appendix C Spreadsheet
	Entire
	Q.
May we provide additional comments in Appendix C spreadsheet and have the unlocked version to do so?
A.
All offerors must fill out Appendix C as is. However, if you feel additional information would be beneficial you may put that information in the relevant section of the main RFP response, where it will be considered. Anything used to fulfill a requirement in Appendix C must be included in all pricing sections.

	3. 
	Appendix C Spreadsheet
	Line 35
	Q.
Would you like us to provide a quote or additional option for a service maintenance agreement or other complimenting solutions outside of the requirements?
A.
If an Offeror would like to include additional options to the State as part of their proposal they may do so. However, the State is under no obligation to incorporate these additional options in the final contract. A separate cost proposal should be submitted for the additional options outside the scope of work.

	4. 
	General
	N/A
	Q.
We have products outside of the mobility suite category, would it be acceptable to submit them to satisfy the scope?
A.
The State strongly encourages Offerors to include all products to satisfy the scope of work. However, anything (software, hardware or other) that is used to fulfill a mandatory requirement or that is described in any response or used to qualify for an affirmative response in Appendix C must be included in the scored pricing section.

	5. 
	4
	Schedule of Events
	Q.
Is intended date for contract award November 2014 or 2015?
A.
November 2014. 

	6. 
	15
	3.5
	Q.
Can responses for a cloud and on-premise delivery models be included in the same response, or must they be two separate responses?
A.
They must be in two separate responses.

	7. 
	17
	3.8
	Q.
Roughly how many solution administrators will require Training?
A.
At this time the State estimates 10. Include training for one group of up to ten people in your cost. 

	8. 
	20
	4.2.1
	Q.
The RFP calls for references that are state governments or universities. Will city governments, county governments, or public school districts be considered as references?
A.
These would be acceptable so long as they have at least 500 mobile devices.

	9. 
	21
	5.2
	Q.
Should the 1,000 device benchmark be used to determine the “License Quantity” in the “Software Licensing” table? If not, how many devices should we assume?
A.
Yes.

	10. 
	22
	5.2
	Q.
Is the “Maintenance” total of the cost breakdown to reflect the sum of all three years, or just year three?
A.
The total of all years.

	11. 
	22
	5.2
	Q.
Is it appropriate to include optional add-on features from the same vendor in the “Third Party Software/Firmware”, or should these be included in a separate table with the price sheet?
A.
You may include this information if you wish. However it is important to note that anything used to either to satisfy a mandatory requirement or to fulfil a requirement in any features matrix must be included in the price. 

	12. 
	22
	5.2
	Q.
The “Document and Training” section asks for fees associated with technical documentation. Is this where we include the cost for initial instructor-led training as well?
A.
Yes.

	13. 
	22
	5.2
	Q.
Should the 1,000 device benchmark be used to determine the “Quantity” in the “Third Party Software/Firmware” table? If not, how many devices should we assume?
A.
Yes.

	14. 
	39
	Appendix B (SaaS Agreement)
	Q.
Offeror proposed changes to Section 2.3 of the SaaS Agreement:

2.3
Change Control.  During the term of this Agreement, the State may propose changes in the Subscription Services, the Non-subscription Services or Provider’s obligations under this Agreement. The State shall deliver a Change Order Request to Provider’s Liaison describing the proposed changes and establishing a period for Provider to respond.  Provider shall respond to the Change Order Request within the time agreed to by the Parties in the Statement of Work by preparing at Provider’s expense and delivering to the State’s Liaison a Change Order Response, indicating: (i) the effect of the proposed changes on the amounts payable by the State under the Agreement, (ii) the effect of the proposed changes (a) to the Subscription Services, (b) the Non-subscription Services and (c) on Provider’s performance of its current obligations under the Agreement, (iii) the anticipated time required for implementation of the proposed changes, and (iv) any other information requested in the Change Order Request or necessary for the State to make an informed decision regarding the Change Order Response.  All Change Order Responses must be explicitly accepted by the State via an addendum or an amendment before any additional fees are incurred by the State. 
Despite any other provision of this Agreement, Provider acknowledges and agrees that Provider is expected to accomplish normal and routine tasks associated with its obligations under this Agreement. No Provider requests for additional chargeable resources will be approved by the State for tasks the State deems to be normal and routine, including changes resulting from changes in federal, state or other laws, regulations ordinances or policies applicable to the site where the Subscription Services and Non-subscription Services are performed and delivered.

A.
The State does not agree to this proposed change.

	15. 
	40
	Appendix B (SaaS Agreement)
	Q.
Offeror proposed changes to Section 6.2 of the SaaS Agreement:
6.2
Authority Warranty.  Provider warrants that it has all authority necessary to provide for the State’s access and use of the Subscription Services and the Non-subscription Services for the purposes set forth in this Agreement, including in any Statement of Work.  Provider further represents, to the best of its knowledge, that sale; licensing or use of any of the Subscription Services and of the Non-subscription Services furnished under this Agreement does not and shall not infringe, misappropriate or otherwise violate any third party’s intellectual property rights.
A.
The State is willing to accept this proposed change.

	16. 
	42
	Appendix B (SaaS Agreement)
	Q.
Offeror corrects spelling error in Section 7.8 of the SaaS Agreement:


7.8
Provider shall report security incidents that occur on the State’s information systems that may affect the State to the Chief Information Officer in the Department of Administration within 24 hours of discovery.
A.
The State accepts this correction.

	17. 
	42
	Appendix B (SaaS Agreement)
	Q.
Offeror proposed changes to Section 7.13 of the SaaS Agreement:




[Offeror] is recommending a hosted solution which involves Montana data resident on [Offeror] hard drives. 

A. The State does not accept modification of this clause as it pertains only to items not expressly authorized by the State. This contract will include express approval to store (in whole or in part) State data on Offeror hardware for specific purposes relating to the fulfillment of the contract. 

	18. 
	42
	Appendix B (SaaS Agreement)
	Q.
Offeror proposed changes to Section 9.1 of the SaaS Agreement:

9.1
Provider Indemnity Obligations.  Without limitation, Provider’s indemnification under this section includes any claim, damage, loss or expense arising from or in connection with any act by any agent, contractor, subcontractor, consultant, or employee of Provider that results in, or is intended by such agent, contractor, subcontractor, consultant, or employee to result in malicious, harmful or otherwise unauthorized access into any of the State’s systems, data, or the State’s technology.


Provider shall (a) defend the State against any third party claim that the products or Subscription Services and Non-subscription Services in the aggregate or any part or portion of them, which are delivered by Provider, infringe a patent, trademark, copyright, trade secret or other proprietary right globally; and (b) pay all costs, damages and attorney fees incurred. Provider shall have no liability for any infringement or claim which results from: (i) the combination, operation or use of the products or Subscription Services and Non-Subscription Services with any non-Provider-provided equipment, software, or data if such infringement would not have occurred but for such combination, operation or use;  (ii) Provider's compliance with designs or specifications of the State; or (iii) use of the products or Subscription Services and Non-Subscription Services in a manner prohibited under this Agreement, in a manner for which the products or Subscription Services and Non-Subscription Services were not designed or in a manner not in accordance with the accompanying documentation.  In addition to defending the State as stated above, if a claim occurs or, in Provider’s opinion, is likely to occur, Provider shall, at its sole option and expense, either (i) procure for the State the right to continue using the Subscription Services and Non-subscription Services in question or (ii) replace or modify the infringing Subscription Services and Non-subscription Services in total or in part so that they become non-infringing; provided that none of the benefits to the State of the Subscription Services’ or Non-subscription Services’ functionality are adversely affected by such replacement or modification, or (iii) discontinue the Subscription Services and terminate the Agreement.
A.
The State is willing to accept these proposed changes.

	19. 
	43
	Appendix B (SaaS Agreement)
	Q.
Offeror proposed changes to Section 10 of the SaaS Agreement:

10.
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY


Except as provided below, Provider's liability to the State for contract damages arising from breach of this Agreement is limited to direct damages, which may not exceed an aggregate of two times the fees paid by the State to Provider in the one (1) year that gave rise to the liability.  Provider is not liable to the State for special, incidental, consequential, punitive, or indirect damages (including but not limited to loss of use, revenue, profit, or data).
A.
The State does not agree to this proposed change.

	20. 
	44
	Appendix B (SaaS Agreement)
	Q.
Offeror proposed changes to Section 11.3.2 of the SaaS Agreement:

11.3.2  Provider Default.  In the event of a determination of Provider’s default under the provisions set forth above, and without limitation on the remedies available to State under any Statements of Work, the State has the following remedies: (i) terminate this Agreement to the extent of the terms and conditions contained in the relevant Statement of Work; (ii) pursue the recovery of actual damages arising out of such default; (iii) seek specific performance by Provider of its obligations under this Agreement; and/or (iv) invoke alternative remedies as may be specified in this Agreement or any Statement of Work.
A.
The State does not agree to this proposed change.

	21. 
	44
	Appendix B (SaaS Agreement)
	Q.
Offeror proposed changes to section 12.1 of the SaaS Agreement.

12.1
Termination for Cause.  If either Party fails to perform any of its obligations or breaches any representations or warranties under this Agreement and such failure is not cured within 30 calendar days after notice is given to the other Party, then such Party, upon further notice to the other Party, may terminate this Agreement as to all or part of the Subscription Services and Non-subscription Services being or to be provided by Provider under the respective Statement of Work as of the date specified in the notice of termination.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing, termination of this Agreement shall also automatically terminate all Statements of Work that are incomplete at the time of termination.  Termination of one Statement of Work shall have no effect on any other Statement of Work or this Master Software as a Service Agreement.
A.
The State does not agree to this proposed change.

	22. 
	46
	Appendix B (SaaS Agreement)
	Q.
Offeror proposed changes to section 13.1 of the SaaS Agreement:

13.1
Provider Ownership.  The Provider Information is and shall remain the Provider’s property unless it is in the public domain.  Provider grants to the State an revocable, royalty free, and restricted right to use, modify, transfer and maintain the Provider Information for the term of the Agreement..  Except as otherwise provided in Paragraph 13.2 below, or as may be expressly agreed in any Statement of Work, Provider retains title to and ownership of any hardware owned and made available by Provider for provision of the Subscription Services and Non-Subscription Services.
A.
The State does not agree to this proposed change.

	23. 
	47
	Appendix B (SaaS Agreement)
	Q.
Offeror proposed changes to Section 14.2 of the SaaS Agreement:

14.2
Assignment, Subcontracting and Transfer. Except in cases of mergers, acquisitions and other similar changes in control, Provider may not assign, transfer, or subcontract any portion of this agreement without the State's prior written consent.  (18-4-141, MCA.)  Provider is responsible to the State for the acts and omissions of all subcontractors or agents and of persons directly or indirectly employed by such subcontractors, and for the acts and omissions of persons employed directly by Provider.  No contractual relationships exist between any subcontractor and the State under this agreement.

A.
The State does not agree to this proposed change.

	24. 
	47
	Appendix B (SaaS Agreement)
	Q.
Offeror proposed changes to Section 14.3 of the SaaS Agreement:

14.3.
Access and Retention of Records.  The Provider shall provide the State, Legislative Auditor, or their authorized agents reasonable access to any records required to be made available by 18-1-118 MCA, in order to determine Agreement compliance.  The Provider shall retain records supporting this Agreement for a period of eight years after either the completion date of this Agreement or the conclusion of any claim, litigation, or exception relating to this Agreement taken by the State of Montana or a third party.
A.
The State is willing to accept this proposed change.
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